United Nations

ECONOMIC
AND

SOCIAL COUNCIL

Nations Unies

CONSEIL

ECONOMIQUE
ET SOCIAL

UNRESTRICTED
E/AC.25/8R.10
16 April 1948
ENGLISH

ORIGINAL: FRENCH

AD HOC COMMITTEE ON GENOCIDE

SUMMARY RECORD OF THE TENTH MEETING

Chairman:

Vice Chairmean:

Rapporteur:

Members:

Secretariat:

Cwriting, in eith

Py el
1o, 1
v Nlpgg{eQA'p}&w 1
- Rewvdcess @01,1091";;

T NECEROrate tha

Held at Lake Success, New York
Thursday, 16 spril 1948, at 2:00 p.m.

Mr, MAETOS

Mr. MOROZOV

Mr. RUDZINSKI

Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.

LIN
ORDONNEAU
AZKOUL
PEREZ FPEROSO

M. SCBWELR

(United States of Amexica)

(Union of Soviet Socialist
Republics)

Poland

China
France
Lebanon
Venezuels

Assistant Director of
Human Rights Division
Committee Secretary

NOTE: Any corrections of this record should be submitted in s

er of the working languages (English or French), -
orking days, to Mr. E. Delavenay, Director, Offlcial

R Eﬁzzcgr;;cgzgzggon, Room CC-119, Lake Success. Corrections should be

- accompanied by ¢r incorporated in a letter, on head§d notepaper;'j
ﬁg?i&% appfopriate symbol number and enclosed in an envelope

Corrections can be dealt with more‘speedily‘by_theiz'
ed if delegations will be good enough also to =
in a mimeographed copy of the record.



E/AC.25/SR.10
 Page 2

DISCUSSION OF THE DRAFTING OF VARIOUS ARTICLES OF THE CONVENTION
Ol GENOCIDE

(1.B. The discussion concerned draft articles submitted by various
delegations, which have not been circulated in the form of documents
of the Commission.)

The CHAIRMAN mentloned that the members of the Ccommittee had
hold an exchange éf views during an informel meeting. They had thus
béen eble to find common ground on various questions. He submitted
to the menbers of the Committee the text he had prepared for the first
four srticles of a Convention for the prevention and punishment of
genobide. The text was based on the gener;i principles elucidated

during the general discussion. He opensd the discussion of articles

*f‘ 1 énd 2 of his draft.

’ Mr. MOROZOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) stated
‘. that in order to heve a legal basis, the Convention should specify in
the definition of the crime ettempt, comspiracy, provocatlon, compliclty,
and pre~meditation, which contribute to the committing of genocide.

If those elements were not included in the definition, the Committee
‘would have to draft a special article to cover them. He called
: attsnﬁion‘to point 2 of hig own draft which took Into account the
“element of pre-meditation, and proposed the subdivision of article 2,
| submitted by the Chalrmen, into three sub-paragraphs: the first would
. define genocide as a criminal act aimed at the physicak &estruction
of & group of human beings on raclal, natlonal or religious grounds;
the sscond would define "physicel destruction" in sccordance with

< the terma‘df grtiole.e of thavtext submitted by the Cheirman; end the
,:‘tﬁird Would‘ahow that measurss teken for the‘élimination of a national
 Houlture’a1so constituted an act of genocide lmown as culbural genocide.

/A separate



E/AC.25/8R. 10
Pagse 3

A separate article would follow specifying the elements of preo-medi-
taﬁjon, prbvccationJ"cqmplicity, otc., which contributed to the
commission o the crime.

Mr. Morozov pointed out that his proposal. mersly cdncerned the
fundemental question and that the Committes was Tree to decide on

the best method of drafting the sub-paragraphs and the twolartioles;

Mr., ORDONNEAU (France) expressed his preference for a
discussion point by point, and sald he was in favour of s separete
article covering the elements of pre-meditation, provocation,

complicity, attempt, and comnspiracy.

Mr. LIN MOUSHENG (China) submitted a propossl which, he
thought, was & compromise between the texts submltted by the Chalrman
‘and. the USSR, The Chinese draft défined genoclde after declaring‘ini
the preamble that genocide was a crime punishable by international
law. He enumerated in four sub-peragraphs of article 1, the_acté 
vhich constituted genocide: first, the physical déstruotion;;in .
whole or in part, of a humen group; second; the subjecting of arhuman
group to conditions of life, or applying to 1t measures that ﬁere' |
likely to resul* in the physical destruction,in whole or in part ‘
of that group; third, the destruction of the institutions or of the .
culture of that group, or the suppresslon of ite lenguege; fourth,
conspiring to commit the acte enumerated under 1, 2 and‘3, or'planhing
them, or attempting to commit them, or‘incifing or provoking other

persons to commlt them.

M, ORDONNEAU (Franca) pointed out that, legel point of
view, it was incorrect to. make the attempt to commit a crime

identical with the crime itself, as sub- paragraph b of the Chineae

/representative’s' .



E/AC.25/8R.10
Page U4

representative's draft sesmed to do. The attempt was not the crime

iteelf,

Mr. PEREZ PEROZO (Venszuela) emphasized the importence of
“the preamble which made all conventions solemn instruments. He
preferred, however, a short presmble, similer to the one submitted
by the Chinese repressntative,

With regard to the definition, he thought that in stating that
génocide was a crime punishable under international law, the scope
_of ‘the convention was being limited. It was preferable to widen it
8¢ g8 to include the éoncept of crime against humanity, or agalnet
~the law of nations, It was understood thet the national courts would
" have to repress the orite. Hence, every State should be able to
take measures for preventlion and punighment covere& by national
legislation,

Finally, the definltion seemed to allow the extermination of
human groups on account of thelr politlcal opinions, since groups
united by a common political opinion were not mentioned.

He favoured e definition’specifying the acts which constituted
genocide, but urged thet the list should be wmerely declaratory and

not_restrictive.

Mr. MOROZOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) pointed
out thet the Committee had agreed not to discuse the preaﬁblé until
after the‘principlea expressed In the Convention had been drafted.

Every mgmher would undoubtedly, at a later stage, have comments
© to meke on the preamble, He also'fhought that the préamﬁlé We.s
necessary‘in-érder tb'ﬁarknfhé SOlqmnvnature of ﬁhe Cpn#ention.
st pointed out‘that his pro@bsal défiﬁing the criméybf génobide in |

/three




T/AC.25/SR.10
Page 5

three paragraphe of the same article, agreed to a great sxtent with
the draft submitted by the Chinese representative, as well as with

the observations maede by the representative of France. Nevertheless,
the elements of provocation, conspiracy, complicity and pre-meditation
should be covered, as he had already stated, by a separate articlé.

end should not be included in the article defining the crime,

Mr. ORDONNEAU (France) agreed with the remarks made by the
representatives of Venezuela and USSR on the preamble, and requested
the members of the Committ;a to examine the definition poiﬂ% by point.
They had to declds flrast of all whether erticle 1 should include
attempt, provocation, pre~meditatioﬁ and complicity.

With the approval of the representatives of Chiné and. USSR, - the

Committee declded to lnclude in a separate erticle the elements of
provocatlon, conspiracy, attempt, etc.

The CHATRMAN pointed out that there had been no objectionam~
to the wording of draft artilcle 1 submitted by the Chinese representativet!
He asked the members whether they thought cultural genooide should : ‘ |
be covered by a separate article. He pointed out that this would
make it easier for the various countries to notify tha~convention.

I the crime of cultural genocide wes dealt with in & separaté 
article, this would enable Govermments to make reservations on a

particular point of the Convention,

Mr. ORDONNEAU (Fr&nce) stated that the drafting of the
clause concarnirg cultural genocide presented great diffioultles
He agreed with the Chalrman that the question should be dealt with
in a separate article. The oharacteristica of cultural gen001de would
glvs rise to such a diversity of concepta in the various leglslations

that would have to deal with 1t, that the crime should be de?ined

with'very'great care. B , ‘
/¥r. LIN MOUSHENG -



E/AC.25/SR.10
Puge 6

Mr. TN MOUSBENG (China) pulubed oul thab In cerhain
counlrles the act of conepiring did not constitute a crime, whereas
other legislations had a different conéept. Although he was not
“opposed to item 4 of his draft being dealt with in a separate article,
Jalc) preferfed that point 3, relating to cultural genocide, should be
retained in arsicle 1. However, if making it a separate article
would facilitatc agresment among the members, he would not be opposed
to that procedufé. He pointed out, however, that legislative bodies
could &g pagily make reservations on part of an article as on a whole
one.

He drew attention to a suggestion made by the representative of
Venezuela, and‘exprsssed nimgelf in favour of a text which would define
gehocide dnly for the purpose of the Convention. Hence, the text
:'hight resd: "In thie Convention, genocide means .....", which would
have the advantage of ﬁrecision without clalming to give an absolute

definition of the crime.

Mr. MOROZOV (Tnion of Soviet Socialist Republics) Tully

‘agreed with the desire of the representative of China to retain
sub-paragraph 3, relating to cultural genocide, in article 1, which gave
the dgfinition of the crime as a whole. That form woﬁld contribute

to the legal accuracy of the definition. Indeed, it would not be
possibie_to isolate one of the elements constituting the crime in
drdsr to specify it ip a separate article.  In that Way; the notion

orf culfural genocide, instead of being put .rather-in the background,
~would only Ee given greater‘importanée. It wag essential to bear

in mipdithat‘ahy prohibition of the use‘of a language, any destruction
cof cultﬁral:moﬁhments, otc., did not‘hecessarily constitute/anvact
of'génocide. They could oﬁly‘b§ s§ describédvif thé acts %ere ‘the

/the result



E/AC.QS/SR.iO
Pags 7

the result of a persecution carried out on racial, national or
religioua grounds. For that reason, he considersd that sub-paragreph 3
of the Chinese draft should remein in the article defining the crime,
because it was an insepareble part of that definition. |

With regard to the ratification of the Conventioh, hé'reﬁarked
that a Convention constituted a whole which could only be ratified
or rejected in its entirety. For that resson, he failed fo understand
the argument of the Chelrmen. TFurthermore, 1t sufficed for the
Convention to be ratified by a specified number of States and 1t would

then come into force.

"/ Mr. ORDONNEAU




& /AC.25/5R.10
Pugo 8

Mr, OHLONN®AT (Franece) coucurrsd in Mr, Morozov's view that
the Convention ghould be ratifisd ag a whole. Hs asked for separation
into  two articles because the draft Cunvention would be considered by
" the Hoonomic and Social Council and the General Assembly, bodies which

vere hardly able to undertake drafting work. In these circumstances,
it would be sasier [or them to: vote on the question of cultural genocids
if it formed the éubject of a separate article.

There wés also a reason of principle: cultural genocids and physical
"geﬁQCide'were not exactly the same crime, and if they were dealt with in
two‘séparate articlen this would avoid confusing their cheracteristics
,ﬁhich were .quite different, While the factor of intention was present
in:both cases, the means of action were differsnt. Thess, in the case

, éf physical genocide, consisted in attacks on life (murder), wheresas
iéulﬁural genocide involved verious acts which might be direscted against
objects and things, such as the "culture" of a group.

He thought therefofe that it would be prejudical to includs in ons
aftiole the factor‘of intention which was common to both crimes, and the
means of execution, which wero entirely different. It would be prefer-

- able to draw up twovsop&rate artvicles, containing the following ideas:
Article 1: Physical genocide ... can be committed by means of
' physical attack on ;ndividuals or. groups,
Article 2: .Cultural genaocides ..; is committed by such and such

material mansg, | |

| If thﬁt solﬁtion were not adbpted, 1t would be necessary to stats
first the general principle and then specify the material means of
vexécution in saparate,pa:agraphs;.as? for examplé, in the draft Conven-

tion proposed by China. He thought it would be preferable to specify

/in separate



3/AC.25 [ER.1u
Page 9

in separate articlss the material msans of exscution distinguishing
the various forms of genocids.

Mr. MOROZOV (Union of Sovist Socialist Republics) agresd
in principle with Mr. Ordonneau. He pointed out‘th&t the text ofk
articla I of the draft Convention submitted by the USSR was similar'
to that of the Chinese draft, inasmuch as it contained thres clearly
distinct ideas, ssparatsed by punctuation marks, He suggested that
if the Chinese text wers to mention the "premeditated creation of
intolerable conditions of 1life" ths resemblance would be still more
evident. Physical destruction and cultural destruction were not, in
his ~pinion, on the same level; both were genocids, but in differ~
snt degrees.. Lrticle I of the Convention should thus be divided intol
three points defining:

1, Genocide in the form of physical destruction;

2. The premsditated inlliction of condlitions of iife aimad ab
the destruction of a group;

3. Cultural genocide.

Ho asked the Committee to accept that division in principle.

Mr. ORDONNEZAU (France) expleined thet in proposing sepa-
ration into two distinct articles, he had not intended‘to imply that
the two aapécts of geﬁocide vore equally important. From ths drafting
point of view, article I of the USSR draft lacked balance. He thought
that peragraphs 1 and 2 of that article should cgnstitute~a‘new article 1,
and paragraph 3 should become articls 2.’ Ho was strongly of the opinién,

that a distinction should be mads between the means of action.

/As far as



E/AC.25 /SR.10
Pago 10

4s far as drafting was concerned, he would be.mnre inclined to
accept the Chinese draft, but here again he thought there should be
an article to dsfine each catogory of crime (physical genocide and
cultural genocide).

In the opinion of Mr. AZKOUL (Lebanon), ths text of the Convention
should be brisf. He thought it should ﬁe poosible to find a single
formule to cover all the detalls, a premise from which all the rest of
. the Convention would follow.
| The fundamental point was to decide what elements should be
_ included in the définition of penccide. He perceivad thres essential

ldeas: the aim of the act, namsly, destruction; the character of that
.dastruction; its motives (national, racial, political, etc,) Hs
’;considered that such & definition would suffice, whether it was drawn
up in one or more perts. Moroover, the enumsration in the Chinese
draft wes dangsrous because 1t wag restrictive. It did not mention
forced religious conversion, which might however be considered as a
punishable element of the crimo of genocide. A very wide dafinition
was thus required; and he wouid proposs a toxt as soon as the merbsrs
of the Commiﬁtee had expressed their opiniona.

Mr. ORDONN#AU (Franco) was in entirs agraemént with Mr. Azkoul's
enalysis. He also considered that a distinction must be nmeds batwsen tha
aim - the physical destruction of a group - and the material reans,
vhatever they might be, used ho achisve that aim,

/The CHAIRMAN



A/aC.E5 feR. 10
~ Pago 11

The CHAIRMAN remarked that the differences of'dﬁinion between
the members of the Committge were of & purely formal n&tﬁre..‘ln réply
to the representative of the USSR, he stated that there4%as no legal
objection to insarting‘inZSeparate articles ths definifion of cultural
gonocide, on the one hand, and that of culturel genooidé, on the:other.
Ho recalled that soms time proviously the Polish representative had
even suggested that a separatc document should be drawn up on cultural
genocide.

Furthermore, hs believed that the separation woufé'faoilitate_the’
adoption of the Convention by the legislative bodies Wﬁich would be
called upon to ratify it, becouse it would enable them to make reser-
vations on certain provisions.

Mr. RUDZINSKI (Poland) pointed out that the Committes had o
 declded to replace the expresmion "deny the right of existencé of
raclal, national, religious or politiéal groups ofmpuman beings" by
"deny the right of existence Lo groups of human béiﬁgs on grounds of>
religion, nationality or polilical opinion". In that connectLon; ho
consldered that a distinction should be mado between the motives of
genocide and its aims., Both chould be defined by‘the Conventidn, which\_

should moreover specify thoso groups which’mhould be protecied against

gsnoclde.

/Mr. MOUSHENG LIN



E/AC.25/SR.10
Page 12

Mr. MOUSHENG LIN (China) proposed that genoclde should be

defined as an act directed against raciel, mational or rellglous groups

for reasons of race, religlon, nationality or political opinion,

Mr. SCHWELB (Secretarist) pointed out that the new wording
of the United States and Chinese drafts differed from the orlglnal
toxta, He emphasized the difficulty experienced by the prosecution

in proving the motives of a crime.
The CHATRMAN agreed with‘Mr. Schwelb,

Mr. ORDONNEAU (Frence) seid that the French text did not
kpresent any difficulties, and that it was in harmony with the ldeas

expressed by the Polish representative.

The CHATRMAN suggested that the Committes should vote on
whether culbural‘genooide and physical genocide should be dealt with

in the same article or in different artlcles.

- Mr, AZKOUL (Lebanon) reised the objection that his vote

would depend on the fimal text of the article or articles in questlon.

~ Mr. PEREZ PEROSO (Vemezuela) éupported the Chelrmen's
suggestlon. He would make ome criticilsm of the text proposed by
;Ohinai it mentloned cultural genoclde only as part of an enumeration
.and not in the definition. He proposed that the Committes should |
vote on wheﬁhér to inoiude culturai genocide at the beginning

of the definitlon contained in the text proposed by Chira.

The Cpmmittee‘decided‘by threo votes to one with two abstentions

to Ingert the notlon of cultural genocide in a separate arhicle.

/Mr, MOROZOV



BYAt. 25500
Fage 13

Mr. MOROZOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) proposed
that physical genccide should be defined in an article consilsting of
two distinct paragraphs, as follows:

Paragraph 1 - In this conventlon, the word "genocilde" means a
criminal act directed at thé physicel destruction of a group on
national, raclal or rellglous grounds.

Paragraph 2_- "Physical destruction” also means the deliberate
subjection of such groups to comdiltions of life that are likely to |

result In thelr physical destruction.

M. ORDONNEAU (France) observed that the text submitted by
the USSR was almost identlcal with the French text. He would

therefore support the proposed definitlon. |

Mr. AZKOUL (Lebanon) observed that Committee wore agreed
on two polnts: +the definition of gemocide should indicate both the
alm and the motilve of the crime. He requested that the definltion

should include a third notion, namely, thet of the destruction of

& group, 8§ Such.

The CHATRMAN was ready to abcept the first paragraph of

the USSR proposal.

Mr., PEREZ-PEROZO (Venezuela) wondered whether the proposed

definition_covared alsb the destruction of one or mors persons as

members of & racial, religioué or natlonal group.

Mr, MOROZOV?(Union'of Soviet Socialist'Republics)‘replied_ :
that hils definltion obviously applied not only to the destruction of
a groﬁp, but to‘ﬁhat_of the individuals composing 1t Whenover murder

/fbr vaclal




E/AC.Z—E5/SR.10
Page 1k

for'racial, nationnl ov Teliglous reesons wes involved., Naturally,
the murder of an indlvidual cculd not be congldered genoclde unless

1t could be proved that it was the first of a serles of acts aimed

at the destruction of an entlre group.

_ Mr. ORDONNEAU (France) thought that that notion should be
etéted clearly in the definition.
o To that end, he suggested the following definition:
| . "he orime known as genoclde is an attack directed againet
" the phyéioal oxlstence of a group of humen beings, as such, or of
pne;or more individuals, as members of the group.”

e said thet this formule met the wish oxpressed by Mr. Azkoul.

| Mr. PEREZ:fEROZO (Venezuela), while agreeing with the
| definition proposed by the representetive of France, thought that a
move flexible definitlion should be adopted. It would be sufficient
v.to add the words "in whole or in part" after the word "destruction®

- In sub~paragraph 1 of the definitlon proposed by the USSR,

Mr. MOROZOV (Union of Soviet Socislist Republics) asked
whethor the following definition would be sebisfactory to the
Cdmmittee:t
| M'In this GoﬁVention, the word "genocide" means a criminal act

aiﬁadvat the physical destruction of & group elther by mass messacre

' oz by indiVidual‘murders, for rdcial, national or religious reasons,"

| - M, ORDONNEAU (France) thought that the new definition was
, 5§60“11mited'in‘scope since thers were other methods of destruction

' besides "massacre” and "murder,"



E/AC,25/8R.10
Page 15

- After a brief discusslon, Mri MOROZOV withdrew his last
proposal and agreed to accept the emendment to his first formula

puggested by the representative of Venezuela.

The CHAIRMAN suggested the addltion of the following phraee
to the definition proposed by the USSR:"... or the physical deetruotion

of an individual incidental to the physical destruction of & group."

Mr. AZKOUL (Lebanon) pointed out that appropriate meaeuree’
ghould be taken for the puniehﬁent of individual crimes aimed at fhe
destruction of a group of human beings before that group was toteliyti'
destroyed. He therefore objected to the worde "incidental to", which
he thought were ambiguous, Heo rether favoured the more flexible‘wording

\euggeeted by the reprementative of Venezuela.

He expressed doubt concerning the full inplication of the word,
"netional". He emphasized that the concept of natlonality wes not '
1dentical in all legal systems. Moxeover, protection had to be extended .
not only to the nationals of any country, but to en ethnlc group, what-
over the nationality of its members, He preferred the wereing‘ﬂﬁhreugh
hatred” or "through natiopel fenaticism' to "eor nationsl reaeone" |

 because, in his view, the word "reasons” might be amblguous.

Mr, MOROZOV‘(Uhion of Soviet'Sooiaiiet Republics)‘wondered‘wheﬁheb ,
the word "nationalistic" might meet Mr. Azkoul's wishes. | '
An ethange of views took place and it became evident that the
. majority of the membere of the Oommittee did not appear to favour
:[;iw Introducing the concepts of hatred and fanaticiem.in the definition,‘s

gince they were not 1egel concepts. : :
/The CEATRMAN




E/AC.25/5R.10
Page 16

The CHATEMAN suggested that the concepts of "nationality"

and "natlonel origin" be combined to cover the case of persons who,

~while possessing & particular nationality, belonged to a different
othnlc group from that of the majority of the population.

The Committee adopted the following definition pending further
discussion of the word "national's

"Tn this Convention, the word "genocide" means & criminal
act almed at the physicel destruction, in whole or in part, of
a group of humen belngs, for raclal, national or religlous

reasons."”

The meeting rose at 6:20 p.m,




